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The following information is provided pursuant to section 28 of the Freedom of Information
Act 2016.

FOI Reference: CMTEDDFOI 2018-0245

Information to be published Status
1. Access application Published
2. Decision notice Published
3. Documents and schedule Published
4. Additional information identified No
5. Fees Waived
6. Processing time (in working days) 26
7. Decision made by Ombudsman N/A
8. Additional information identified by Ombudsman N/A
9. Decision made by ACAT N/A
10. Additional information identified by ACAT N/A




From:

To: CMTEDD FOI

Subject: Freedom of Information request

Date: Thursday, 13 September 2018 2:03:46 PM

Please find online enquiry details below. Please ensure this enquiry is responded to within
fourteen working days.

Your details

All fields are optional, however an email address OR full postal address must be
provided for us to process your request. An email address and telephone contact
number will assist us to contact you quickly if we need to discuss your request.

Title:

First Name:

Last Name:
Business/Organisation:
Address:

Suburb:

Postcode:
State/Territory:
Phone/mobile:

Email address:
Request for information

(Please provide as much detail as possible, for example subject matter and relevant
dates, and also provide details of documents that you are not interested in.)

Under the Freedom of  All documents related Notifiable Instrument N12018-415. This
Information Act 2016 I may include but is not limited to, correspondence, policy

want to access the documents or discussions, meeting notes, Ministerial briefs, and
following document/s  consultation regarding the changes effected in or relating to the
(*required field): Notifiable Instrument.
| do not want to access
the following
X . n/a
documents in relation to
my request::
Thank you.

Freedom of Information Coordinator






My access decisions are detailed further in the following statement of reasons and the
documents released to you are provided as Attachment B to this letter.

In accordance with section 54(2) of the Act a statement of reasons outlining my decision
is below.

Statement of Reasons
In reaching my access decision, | have taken the following into account:

e the Act; ‘

e the content of the documents that fall within the scope of your request;
e the views of the relevant third party; and

e the Human Rights Act 2004.

Exemption claimed

My reasons for deciding not to grant access to the identified documents and components
of these documents are as follows:

Legal Professional Privilege (Schedule 1 of the Act)

Folios 12-16 contain advice provided by the Justice and Community Safety Parliamentary
Counsel. | consider the advice is subject to legal professional privilege as it was brought
into existence for the dominant purpose of providing a legal opinion in relation to
provisions in the Workers Compensation Act 1951. | am satisfied that the
communications were made in circumstances of confidentiality and were provided by an
independent legal adviser satisfying the requirements to attract legal professional
privilege. For this reason, | have decided to exempt from release this information.

Public Interest

The Act has a presumption in favour of disclosure. As a decision maker | am required to
decide where, on balance, public interests lies. As part of this process | must consider
factors favouring disclosure and non-disclosure.

In Hogan v Hinch (2011) 243 CLR 506, [31] French CJ stated that when ‘used in a statute,
the term [public interest] derives its content from “the subject matter and the scope and
purpose” of the enactment in which it appears’. Section 17(1) of the Act sets out the test,
to be applied to determine whether disclosure of information would be contrary to the
public interest. These factors are found in subsection 17(2) and Schedule 2 of the Act.

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within
the scope of your request, | have identified that the following public interest factors are
relevant to determine if release of the information contained within these documents is
within the ‘public interest’.

Factors favouring disclosure {(Schedule 2 section 2.1)

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within
the scope of your request, | have identified that the following public interest factors in



favour of disclosure are relevant to determine if release of the information contained
within these documents is within the ‘public interest’:

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following:

(ii)  contribute to positive and informed debate on important issues or matters of
public interest; and

(viii) reveal the reason for a government decision and any background or contextual
information that informed the decision.

Having considered the factors identified as relevant in this matter, | consider that release
of the information contained in the documents may contribute to positive and informed
debate on workers’ compensation cover for family day-care educators. | consider there is
a public interest where the Minister may declare classes of people to be covered for
workers’ compensation. | am satisfied that the public interest in increasing transparency
and accountability of the Directorate carries significant weight in favour of release.

The documents include the reasons why adequate workers’ compensation is important
especially in supporting workers through what can be difficult times and the reasons why
family day-care educators have now been declared covered by workers’ compensation. |
believe the documents will provide you with background and contextual information that
informed the Government’s decision to declare family day-care workers to be workers
employed for the Workers Compensation Act 1951.

Factors favodrinq non-disclosure (Schedule 2 section 2.2)

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within
the scope of your request, | have identified that the following public interest factors in
favour of non-disclosure are relevant to determine if release of the information contained
within these documents is within the ‘public interest’.

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following:
(i) prejudice the protection of an individual’s right to privacy or any other right
under the Human Rights Act 2004,
(xi) prejudice trade secrets, business affairs or research of an agency or person.

When considering the documents and factors in favour of non-disclosure, | have
considered the personal information contained in the documents, including names,
contact information (mobile phone numbers, email addresses). | consider it is
unreasonable to release the names and contact information of individuals that are not
ACT Government employees as this is personal information that is not publicly available. |
am satisfied that information regarding individual’s identity is personal information and
that releasing this information may prejudice the protection of the individual right to
privacy or any other right under the Human Rights Act 2004.

| have also considered the impact that disclosing the information related to Genesis
Family Day Care Services’ business affairs. In the case of Re Mangan and The




Treasury [2005] AATA 898 the term ‘business affairs’ was interpreted as meaning ‘the
totality of the money-making affairs of an organisation or undertaking as distinct from its
private or internal affairs’. Schedule 2 section 2.2 allows for government information to
be withheld from release if disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to
prejudice the trade secrets, business affairs or research of an agency or person.

Having reviewed the documents identified, | am satisfied that the release of certain
information could prejudice Genesis Family Day Care Services’ business affairs. This
includes admin fee percentage figures paid by educators and hourly rates. The
information is related to the operational cost of this business and the release of such
information may adversely impact the current and future business activities of the
business.

Noting the pro-disclosure intent of the Act, | am satisfied that redacting only the
information that is not in the public interest to release, while releasing the rest of the
documents will ensure the intent of the Act is met and will provide you with access to the
majority of information held by CMTEDD within the scope of your request.

Folios 1-3, 6-8, 12-16 (Schedule 1), 17, 18, 19, 23, 25, 27, 29, 31, 33, 35, 37, 39, 41, 44-47,
50-53, 55-57, 59-61 of the identified documents contain information that | consider, on
balance, to be contrary to the public interest to disclose under the test set out in section
17 of the Act.

Additional Information
Folio 54 is an incomplete draft that has not been finalised.
Charges

Pursuant to Freedom of Information (Fees) Determination 2017 (No 2) processing charges
are applicable for this request because the total number of folio’s to be released to you
exceeds the charging threshold of 50 pages. However, the charges have been waived in
accordance with section 107 (2)(e) of the Act.

Online publishing — Disclosure Log

In accordance with section 28 of the Act, CMTEDD maintains an online record of access
applications in the form of a disclosure log. Your original access application, my decision
and documents released to you in response to your access application will be published in
the CMTEDD disclosure log after 25 October 2018. Your personal contact details will not
be published.

The CMTEDD disclosure log is at http://www.cmd.act.gov.au/functions/foi/disclosure-log.

Ombudsman Review

My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 3 of the Act.
You have the right to seek Ombudsman review of this outcome under section 73 of the Act



within 20 working days from the day that my decision is published in CMTEDD disclosure log, or a

longer period allowed by the Ombudsman.
If you wish to request a review of my decision you may write to the Ombudsman at:

The ACT Ombudsman

GPO Box 442

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) Review

Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82(1) on an Ombudsman
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. Further
information may be obtained from the ACAT at:

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal
Level 4, 1 Moore St

GPO Box 370

Canberra City ACT 2601

Telephone: (02) 6207 1740
http://www.acat.act.gov.au/

Should you have any queries in relation to your request please contact me by telephone
on 6207 7754 or email CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

)

/?/7

Daniel Riley

Information Officer

Information Access Team

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate

Z Z October 2018




ACT

Government

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
REQUEST SCHEDULE

Chief Minister, Treasury and
Economic Development

NAME WHAT ARE THE PARAMETERS OF THE REQUEST Reference NO.

_ All documents related Notifiable Instrument NI2018-415. This may include but is not limited to, CMTEDDFOI2018-0245
correspondence, policy documents or discussions, meeting notes, Ministerial briefs, and
consultation regarding the changes effected in or relating to the Notifiable Instrument.
Ref No Page number Description Date Status Reason for Exemption Online Release Status
1 1-7 Ministerial Brief CMTEDD2018/2903 6Jul 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
2 8 MLA Letter 12 Jul 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
3 9-11 Ministerial Brief - CMTEDD2018/3875 30 Jul 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
4 12-16 Email Chain - RE: Family Day Care 7-22 Aug 2018 Exempt Schedule 1 - Legal Professional No
Privilege
5 17-18 Letter 7 Aug 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
6 19-40 Various Letters — Workers Compensation Insurance -Approved 8 Aug 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
family day care and Approved in-home care services (duplicate
attachments removed)
7 41-43 Email = RE: Family Day Care and In-Home Carers 9 Aug 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
8 44-51 Email - Re: Work Safety Council Submission - Genesis Family 14 Aug 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
Day Care Services
9 52-53 Email - FW: Clarification on Workers Compensation Insurance 16 Aug 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 s2.2 (a)(ii) Yes
10 54 Guidance Note Aug 2018 Full Release N/A Yes
11 55-60 Ministerial Brief - CMTEDD2018/4323 6 Sep 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
12 61 MLA Letter 6 Sep 2018 Partial Release Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
Total No
of Docs
12













Genesis Famlly Day Care Services,

[ABN: 96 262 093 429]

1 Dittmer Place, Fadden ACT 2904
Tel: 02 6291 7101

Emall: Info@genesisfdc.com.au

G@ﬁ SES www.geneslsfdc.com.au

FAMAY Qa8 FARE SR ES

The Hon Andrew Barr, MLA The Hon Ms Rachel Stephen-Smith, MLA
Chief Minister Minister for Disability, Children & Youth
Minister for Workplace Safety & Industrial Relations

1 June 2018

Dear the Hon Mr Barr and the Hon Ms Stephen-Smith

I am writing regarding Section16A {amended in 2006) of the ACT Workers Compensatlon'Act
1951 (the Act) related to self-employed Family Day Care (FDC) Educators.

Request:

| respectfully ask the ACT Government to:

o remove the requirement for workers compensation for self-employed Family Day Care
Educators; and

 establish a framework to provide affordable ‘accident and sickness income protection
insurance’ for all self-employed Family Day Care Educators with mandatory
co-contribution from FDC Services

Background:

- While many sections of the ACT Workers Compensation Act 1951 have been reviewed and the
Act amended a number of times in the past 10 years, Section 16A has not been reviewed since
2006 despite enormous changes in the family day care sector.

The family day care landscape has changed dramatically since 2006 when it was primarily v
provided through government and community based (not-for-profit) services with most
services "employing” the family day care educators.

Currently, the sector is.much more diverse with many not-for-profit, community and private
family day care providers, and the most.common operating model for both the private and
community-based services is to “engage” educators as “independent self-employed contractors
carrying out business in their own home”.




The Service receives child care subsidies from Centrelink on behalf of the parents and pass
them on to the Educators.

Within broad parameters set by the Services, each FDC Educator:

e set their own fees

e choose their own work hours

o collect the gap fees (i.e. full fee less subsidies) directly from the parents; and
e pay an admin fee to the Service

This operating model is approved by both Commonwealth and state/territory governments
administering the Education and Care National Law and the Family Assistance Law.

FDC Services are required under the Education and Care National Law and Family Assistance
Law to perform legal, regulatory, and quality monitoring responsibilities with respect to the
education-and care provided by FDC Educators.

FDC Services also process time-sheets and payments, assess Educators’ homes-and ensure
they are suitable, help ensure Educators have access to professional development,
mentor Educators, and provide assistance with planning and documenting educational
programs. ,

Issues:

There Is clearly a lack of clarity and inconsistency in the application of the legislative provision
related to Workers Compensation for self-employed family day care Educators in the ACT.

(I) Calculation of workers compensation premiums in the absence of wages / salaries

The Services do not pay wages or salaries to the Educators.

The FDC Services simply pass on the child care subsidiesﬂfrom Centrelink to the Educators. They
have ho control over the amount of subsidies received on behalf of the families as the amounts
are determined by Centrelink based on each family’s circumstances.

The Services do not make any other payment to Educators.

It is the FDC Educators who pay the Service an admin fee,

Hence, the calculation of workers compensation premium as a.percentage of wages clearly

CANNOT apply for self-employed FDC Educators, and the current method of calculating
premiums appears arbitrary.

(if) Not all FDC Services pay workers compensation premiums

There is also no uniform applicability of workers compensation provisions within the ACT for
FDC setvices,




There are a number of FDC services operating in the ACT that do not employ FDC Educators but
have self-employed FDC Educators registered with them.

Among these Services, only some FDC services are required to pay workers compensation - it
appears that only Genesis Family Day Care Services (a private entity) and |
M are required to provide workers compensation cover for the self-

employed FDC Educators in the ACT.

The Ministet’s declaration in 2006 requires SIS (PG (DI 0 pay workers compensation
insurance for the self-employed FDC educators.

When we sought independent legal advice on this issue, we were advised there was no
legislative basis for usto provide workers compensation cover for the self-employed family day
care Educators.

However, when we conveyed this advice to our Insurer, it was passed on to Worksafe ACT who
advised that the legislation covers all self-employed FDC Educators in the ACT and that the
Service should provide workers compensation cover. We were advised that if Service did not
comply, then it would be forced to do so through a Ministet’s Declaration. Hence, we complied.

(iii) Workers compensation costs borne by Educators
The Services charge on average er cent of the Educator’s fee income as admin fee to
meet their staff (Coordinators, admin staff) and other costs.

~ The workers compensation premiums are in effect paid by Educators, which add another
per cent to the admin fees, leaving Educators with ]ustof their total income before any

of their own expenses or tax.

Workers compensation premiums are significant costs to the Service and Is second only to
employee remuneration (Coordinators & Admin staff).

The Service tries to keep the admin fee low and has not increased fees since commencement in
2015, so the Educators can keep their fees reasonable and the parents can access affordable
care,

However, low fees will no longer be sustainable with substantial changes to both Education and
Care National Law (changes effective Oct 2017 & Feb 2018) and the Family Assistance Law (Jul
2018 & Jan 2019) imposing significant administration, system and compliance costs on Services.

(iv) Alternative to workers compensation

Our owr experience suggests there is very little, if any, support from the Educators for the
workers compensation cover.,

'On the contrary, the Educators have repeatedly asked the Service to assist them in procuring
subsidised accident and sickness income protection insurance.










MINISTERIAL BRIEF

ACT

Government

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic
Development Directorate

UNCLASSIFIED

To: . Minister for Workplace Safety and Industrial | Tracking No.: CMTEDD2018/3875
Relations

Cc: Chief Minister

From: Executive Director, Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations

Subject: Workers’ compensation requirements for Family Day Care Educators and

In-home Care Workers

" Critical Date: 26 July 2018

Critical Reason:  To ensure that Family Day Care Educators and In-home Care Workers are
covered for workers’ compensation

o UT RY1¥

Purpose

To declare all people engaged by an approved family day care service or an approved
in-home care service as workers of the service for the purposes of the Workers
Compensation Act 1951 (the Act).

Recommendations
That you:

1. agree to declare all people engaged by an approved family day care service or an
approved in-home care service as workers of the service;

@ Not Agreed/ Please Discuss

2. agree to allow all uninsured approved family day care services until
1 September 2018 to obtain a workers’ compensation policy; and

@Not Agreed/ Please Discuss

3. sign the attached Workers Compensation (Family Day Care and In-Home Care)

Declaration. A
~CSigredy Qease Discy
Qe Ne? 30 ‘ ~
, UNCLASSIFIED
Tracking No.:
CMTEDD2018/3875

1




UNCLASSIFIED

4. agree for the Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations Division to consult with key
stakeholders, including the ACT Work Safety Council, on options to amend the Act
to deem all people engaged by an approved family day care service or an approved
in-home care service as workers of the service for the Act,

Not Agreed/ Please Discuss
S 2o

Rachel StEphen-Smith IMLA ..o seimmesmmee i o /.:’../

Minister’s Office Feedback .
Prleosc double cdhech wivument = for A sans
Prave ove 13 providet | LA s Sty sk
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Background

5. As previously advised (CMTEDD2018/2903), in 2006 the Government legislated to
declare workers engaged under the Family Day Care (Australian Capital Territory)
Award 1999 to be workers for the purposes of workers’ compensation.

6. In 2011, the Family Day Care (Australian Capital Territory) Award 1999 was repealed
and the Education and Care Services National Law (ACT) Act 2011 (the Education and
Care Act) was introduced.

7. One of the effects of the introduction of the Education and Care Act was the removal

.....

of deemed workers’ compensation coverage for family day care and approved in-home

carer’s.

8.  There is no evidence that the removal of workers’ compensation coverage was
intentional and it is not consistent with Government policy.

9. At present around half of the Territory’s 13 family day care providers have workers’
compensation insurance.

Issues

10. There are provisions in the Act for the Minister to deem family day care and in-home
care providers as workers, which in effect will provide them with access to workers’
compensation.

11. To ensure the intention of the 2006 reforms are met and all Government approved
family day care and in-home care providers are covered for workers’ compensation,
we now attach Workers Compensation (Family Day Care and In-Home Care)
Declarations for your sighature at Attachment A,

12. It is proposed that the Declarations are effective from 1 September 2018 so as to allow
sufficient time for providers to obtain a workers’ compensation policy.

13. The Executive Director, Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations (WSIR) will write to
each family day and in-home care provider to advise them of this decision.

UNCLASSIFIED
Tracking No.: CMTEDD2018/3 8753875



UNCLASSIFIED

14, Although the declarations resolve the currentissue in the short term, it is possible a
similar issue (i.e. with non-declared providers) may arise in the future if new providers
commence operation the Territory without WSIRs knowledge. On this basis your
agreement is being sought to commence consultation with key stakeholders on
amending the Act to enshrine workers’ compensation coverage for family day care
workers in the Act.

Financial Implications
15.  There will not be any impact on the Territory budget, however there will be a cost to

all uninsured providers in obtaining a workers’ compensation premium of
approximately 3% of declared wages.

Consulitation
Internal
16. Nil.

Cross Directorate

17.  Nil
External
18. Nil.

Benefits/Sensitivities »
19. As previously advised, the apparently unintentional impact of the 2011 Education and

Care Act reforms has resulted in:

a. inconsistent approaches by industry, with approximately half of the ACT
providers operating on the assumption that family daycare workers are
entitled to workers’ compensation as per longstanding policy;

b. a risk that insurers may not honour workers’ compensation policies for
family daycare workers as they are not technically classified as workers for
the purposes of the Workers’ Compensation Act.

Media Implications

20. Nil.
Signatory Name: Michael Young Phone: 6205 3095
Action Officer: Kerry Van De Laarschot Phone: 6205 0861
Attachments
Attachment Title
Attachment A Declaration - ACT Family Day Care Providers

UNCLASSIFIED
Tracking No.: CMTEDD2018/3 8753875
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Australian Capital Territory

Workers Compensation (Family Day Care
and In-Home Care) Declaration 2018 (No 1)

Notifiable instrument NI12018—x

made under the

Workers Compensation Act 1951, section 16A Family day care carers

1 Name of instrument
This instrument is the Workers Compensation (Family Day Care and In-Home
Care) Declaration 2018.

2 Commencement

This instrument commences on 1 September 2018.

3 Declaration

I declare individuals engaged by an approved family day care service or an
approved in-home care service operated by any of the following services:

e ACT Family Day Care

e Amazing Family Day Care Pty Ltd

e  Early Sunshine Family Day Care

o Eden Family Day Cate

o  Genesis Family Day Care

e Headstart Family Daycare Canbetra

e Inspired Family Day Care ACT

o Kiddie cove family day care

e Nefe’s Family Day Care

e  Woden Comminity Service Family Day Care
e Young Women’s Christian Association Family Day Care

to be workers employed by that service for the Workers Compensation Act
1951,

Rachel Stephen-Smith
Minister for Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations

Unauthorised version prepared by ACT Parllamentary Counsel's Office






[f you have any questions or would like to discuss the matter further, please do not hesitate
to contact Ms Kerry Van De Laarschot on 6205 0861 or kerry.vandelaarschot@act.gov.au.

Yours si }/r/d g
Ay /
S /
7 ) S
,’;;}?

/
Vs
e g‘;’ ,,/ ;

Mi Young
Execytivé Director
o Compensation Policy

rkpTace Safety and Industrial Relations Division

8 August 2018




Australian Capital Territory

Workers Compensation (Family Day Care
and In-Home Care) Declaration 2018 (No 1)

Notifiable instrument NI12018-415
made under the

Workers Compensation Act 1951, section 16 A Family day care carers

1 Name of instrument

This instrument is the Workers Compensation (Family Day Care and In-Home
Care) Declaration 2018 (No 1)*.

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

o ACT Family Day Care

e Amazing Family Day Care Pty Ltd

e Early Sunshine Family Day Care

e Eden Family Day Care

e  Genesis Family Day Care

e Headstart Family Daycare Canberra

e Inspired Family Day Care ACT

e Kiddie cove family day care

e Nefe’s Family Day Care

e  Woden Comminity Service Family Day Care
¢  Young Women’s Christian Association Family Day Care

to be workers employed by that service for the Workers Compensation Act
1951.

Rachel Stephen-Smith
Minister for Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations
30 July 2018

*Name amended under Legislation Act, s 60

Authorised by the ACT Parliamentary Counsel—also accessible at www.legislation.act.gov.au




INSURER

ADDRESS

PHONE NUMBER

Allianz Australia Insurance Ltd

PO Box 262 Canberra
City 2601

(02) 6246 1404

CGU Insurance Ltd

Level 2
6 National Circuit
Barton ACT 2600

(02) 6240 4770

GlO General Ltd

PO Box 47
Woden ACT 2606

(02) 6281 8801

Guild Insurance

Suite 4
31 Thesiger Court
Deakin ACT 2600

(02) 6124 2222

QBE Insurance

Level 7
220 Northbourne Ave
Braddon ACT 2612

(02) 6201 3311

Zurich Insurance

Ground Floor
99 Northbourne Ave
Turner ACT 2612

(02) 6247 3766







If you have any questions or would like to discuss the matter further, please do not hesitate -
to contact Ms Kerry Van De Laarschot on 6205 0861 or kerry.vandelaarschot@act.gov.au.

Yours sincerely~

Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations Division

8 August 2018
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If you have any questions or would like to discuss the matter further, please do not hesitate
to contact Ms Kerry Van De Laarschot on 6205 0861 or kerry.vandelaarschot@act.gov.au.

pely

Yours sj
1/

/

y

Execytivg Diyector
Workers' Compensation Policy
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

You
Ay
ey
£/ ?/ //

rysi /e/rely
e

v

v

ers’ Compensation Policy
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

Yours smcg/ Y.

mpensation Policy
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

Yours smce
/X[i

- Workers\Compensation Policy
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

Yours sin927 y

A

MichaelYoung

Exedutiyie Dijrector »

Workers mpensation Policy

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

Yours smcere/r/y P
’//x g // :/ Ve

rs“Compensation Policy
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

Yours sincesg}y

ompensation Policy
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

Yours sincergly,

Migﬁé % ung
Exec i(gi)irector

Workers' Compensation Policy
Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations Division

8 August 2018

3|Page



From: Jason Goodfellow

To: VanDel.aarschot, Kerry

cc: (Grea Mathews; Amanda C Hawke

Subject: RE: Family Day Care and In-Home Carers [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Thursday, 9 August 2018 10:34:20 AM

Attachments: Image001.png

Thanks Kerry,

It looks like the policies identified in the CGU portfolio have now been approved by the Minister.

Sch 2.2(a)(i

We look forward to supporting any new cover requests.
Any concerns please do not hesitate to call.

Kind regards,

Senior Ungerwnter, aorkers Compensation ACT

Complex and Tailored Underwriting Solutions
Australian Business Division

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)

cgu.com.au
facebook.com/cguinsurance
twitter.com/cguinsurance

CGU is backed by IAG

2015 & 2016 Insurance Business Insurer of the Year
2015 & 2016 NIBA General Insurer of the Year
2015 Australian Industry Awards Large General Insurer of the Year

(CGU logo

FE Sch 2.2(a)(ii)

Sent: Wednesday, 8 August 2018 3:30 PM

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)

Subject: Fwd: Family Day Care and In-Home Carers [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

Dear Insurers,



I'am writing to inform you of a recent Workers Compensation Declaration which has been
issued.

As you are aware there are provisions in the Workers Compensation Act 1951 (section 16A)
for the Minister to deem classes of people as employees and thus provide them with access
to workers’ compensation.

In 2006 the Government legislated to declare workers engaged under the Family Day Care
(Australian Capital Territory) Award 1999 to be workers for the purposes of workers’
compensation.

Two services which did not come under the award were declared via a Workers
Compensation (Family Day Care and In-Home Care) Declaration to ensure equity across the
industry: http://www.legislation.act.gov.au/ni/2006-351/default.asp

In 2011 the Family Day Care (Australian Capital Territory) Award 1999 was repealed by the
passage of the Education and Care Services National Law (ACT) Act 2011. One of the
effects was the removal of deemed workers’ compensation coverage for those who were
previously declared under the Award.

This has recently been bought to the attention of the Minister for Workplace Safety and
Industrial Relations. As a result, the Minister has made a further declaration to cover the
remaining government approved family day care service providers as workers of the family
day care service they are registered with: http://www.legislation.act.gov.au/ni/2018-

415/default.asp

We will be writing to all services affected in the coming week advising them of this
obligation and providing contact details for all approved workers compensation insurers in
the ACT (example of letter attached).

As a result of this, you may be contacted by Family Day Care Services seeking a workers’
compensation policy to cover all individuals who are registered through their service.

Alist of all government approved family day care services can be found here:
https://www.acecqa.gov.au/resources/national-registers/services?
s=&f%5B0%5D=service_state%3AACT&I%5B1%5D=service_search_type%3AFamily%20Day%20Care

If you have any questions, or wish to discuss the matter further, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Regards

Kerry



Kerry Van De Laarschot | Manager, Workers' Compensation Pdlicy & Workplace Relations
Phone: 02 6205 0861 | Email: kerry.vandelaarschot@act.gov.au

Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations Division

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government

Level 1 221 London Circuit, Canberra|GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | www.act.gov.au

This email, and any attachments, may be confidential and also privileged. If you are
not the intended recipient, please notify the sender and delete all copies of this
transmission along with any attachments immediately. You should not copy or use it
for any purpose, nor disclose its contents to any other person.

The information transmitted in this message and its attachments (if any) is intended
only for the person or entity to which it is addressed.

The message may contain confidential and/or privileged material. Any review,
retransmission, dissemination or other use of, or taking of any action in reliance
upon this information, by persons or entities other than the intended recipient is
prohibited.

If you have received this in error, please contact the sender and delete this e-mail
and associated material from any computer.

The intended recipient of this e-mail may only use, reproduce, disclose or distribute
the information contained in this e-mail and any attached files, with the permission
of the sender.

This message has been scanned for viruses.










Sch 2.2(a)(in)

From:

To: VanDelaarschot, Kerry .
Subject: Re: Work Safety Council Submission - Genesis Family Day Care Services [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Tuesday, 14 August 2018 2:35:29 PM

Attachments: Signed Letter to Chief Minister (Request to delay NI415 implementation).pdf

Dear Kerry

Thank you for responding and apologies for the inconvenience.

For your information and reference, I have attached a copy of the letter that was delivered
to the Chief Minister, the Minister for Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations, and the
Leader of the Oppos1t10n on th1s matter The Notlﬁable Instrument has 31gn1ﬁcant impact
on the , and we have no choice but to
pursue this matter through all available avenues to seck a fair resolution. The letter is self
explanatory and focuses on some of the issues that you have attempted to address.

We have previously reviewed the publication you have rcferred to, and the F DC services

that engage self employed Educators do no
f li icati

I will have to disagree with your view that notifiable instruments do not require a

‘regulatory impact statement’. The Notifiable Instrument is a disallowable instrument and
must be tabled in the Legislative Assembly within 6 days of making. RIS is not required
only if there has been a comparable level of publication and consultation on the matters
covered in the instrument. Part 5 of the Legislation Act 2001 covers the conditions to be
met for making a valid subordinate legislation/ disallowable instrument.

Thank you for your response and kind regards

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)

On 14 Aug 2018, at 11:40 am, VanDeLaarschot, Kerry

<Kerry.Vanl delaarschot@act.gov.au> wrote:
S Sch 2 2(a)1)

Thank you for your further questions below.
| have responded in red.
Regards

Kerry

Kerry Van De Laarschot | Manager, Workers' Compensation Policy & Workplace Relations

Phone: 02 6205 0861 | Email: kerry.vandelaarschot@act.gov.au






<IRSY18 240843 CMTEDD2018 3875 Signed instrument.pdf>



Genesis Family Day Care Services

[ABN: 96 252 093 420]

1 Dittmer Place, Fadden ACT 2904
Tel: 02 6291 7101

Email: info@genesisfde.com.au
www.genesisfdc.com,au

To:
Hon Mr Andrew Barr MLA, Chief Minister ,
Hon Ms Rachel Stephen-Smith MLA, Minister for Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations

Dear the Hon Mr Barr and the Hon Ms Stephen-Smith

RE: NOTIFIABLE INSTRUMENT NIi2018-415

We are writing in response to the letter of 8 August 2018 from the Chief Minister's Department
regarding the Nofifiable Instrument (NI2018-415) made by the ACT Minister for Workplace
Safety and Industrial Relations on 30 July 2018. ,

Request

We ask you to urgently amend the Notifiable Instrument NI2018-415 to delay
implementation of the measure to 1 January 2019 and issue a ‘regulatory impact
statement’ to clarify the impacts on Services, Educators and parents.

Issues

The ACT Government is well within its right to introduce regulations in the public interest.
However, there has to be due process, sufficient consideration of the consequences of such
regulations, and reasonable timeframe for businesses and individuals to prepare for the

changes.

We believe the Notifiable Instrument has been made without having regard to relevant
considerations and processes (Refer Part 5 of Legislation Act 2001).

The Notifiable Instrument was made on 30 July and the services were informed of it on 8
August. The Instrument is to come in to effect on 1 September 2018 — with just 3 weeks notice.

No consultation was done, or a regulatory impact statement prepared, despite the significant
adverse cost impact on businesses and individuals. ‘

Consideration of Relevant Information

(i)  Unlike Community based family day care (FDC) services that have other operational
arms (e.g. child care centres, property hire) and capacity to cross subsidise FDC
operations, most privately owned FDC services are small businesses with a single line

of operation.




the other two community-based services (RabRaACH)
employ their FDC Educators.

(USch 2.2(a)(ii) Jlas been covered under a similar instrument since 2006. Given it
2 years since that instrument was made, a review of that arrangement would have
been useful to assess how the arrangement is working in practice, its effectiveness and
the cost-benefit of the arrangement.

(iv) Such a review prior to issuing the notifiable instrument would also have been useful,
given the ACT is a signatory to the 2011 uniform national work health and safety laws
and that no other signatory state or territory has similar workers compensation
provisions for self-employed family day care Educators in their jurisdictions.

Business Impact

(i) Most FDC services’ sole income is the admin fee charged to the FDC Educators,
which is around f the Educators’ income. If we are to assume that the current

4.65% workers compensation premium (i i I levy) is to be applied to the FDC
Educator’s income, that would equate t the FDC Service’s income.

(i) Inthe case of Genesis Family jces, we have been operating for the past

2 Y2 years with an admin fee o er child and have never increased the

fees.

(i) We employ Coordinators & admin staff and also at no additional cost — run a music

group and a playgroup for 2 days each week during school term: organise excursions

"~ (e.g. bus wash, parks); and conduct annual year end children’s concert for the benefit

of the families. Even though private, we run the Service as a social enterprise with
marginal profitability.

(iv) Currently, the Service’s admin fee is mf the average Educator fees and under
the Minister's 30 July declaration, the compensation premium of 4.65% would
account for 41% of the Service’s current operating budget. Such a cost impost with
less than a month notice is unconscionable for an elected Government.

(v)  Given it is impossible for any service to absorb such a cost at such short notice and at
once, the Service will have no choice but to pass on most or all of the cost to Educators.

(vi) If the full 4.65% workers compensation rate is to be passed on to FDC Educators, it
would be equivalent to an increase in income tax of 4.65% on gross income (not
taxable income) without any commensurate increase in income.

(vii) When the major parties in the Federal Parliament agree on reducing costs to small
businesses and are cutting company taxes, your Government has increased the costs
of doing business in the ACT for some entities by over 40% with just 3 weeks notice.

Correct Wages Declaration and Calculation of Workers Compensation Premiums

(i) As the Service does not pay self-employed FDC Educators any monies that fall under
the usual meaning of “salaries, wages or allowances”, there must be published
notification from the Government as to what payments are to be considered
‘salaries, wages or allowances” for the purposes of determining_the workers
compensation premium.

This is fundamental to give effect to the notifiable instrument to avoid any confusion or
differential treatment and for all FDC services to comply with the notifiable instrument.







From:

To:

Subject: FW: Clarification on Workers Compensation Insurance [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
Date: Thursday, 16 August 2018 10:03:00 AM

Importance: High

Sch 2.2(a) i)
.

The Declaration previou of our letter of 8 August 2018 declares all
educators as workers of for the purposes of workers compensation,

regardless of whether they are sub-contractors or self-employed.

Your workers compensation policyw need to cover all of your educators.

You will need to contact RISUPAAC) () to amend your policy to include all family day educators.
To do that you will need to have an estimate of the total of your educators annual wages.

If you require any further assistance in amending your policy, your insurer will be able to assist
you.

If I can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Regards

Kerry

Kerry Van De Laarschot | Manager, Workers' Compensation Policy & Workplace Relations

Phone: 02 6205 0861 | Email: kerry.vandelaarschot@act.gov.au

Worlcplace Safety and Industrial Relations Division

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government
Level 1 221 London Circuit, Canberra| GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | www.act.gov.au

From: VanDelaarschot, Kerry

Sent: Thursday, 16 August 2018 9:50 AM
WCASch 2.2(a)(ii)
Subject: RE: Clarification on Workers Compensation Insurance [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

QSch 2.2(a)i)
=

Thank you for your enquiry.

We are writing to all Family Day Care Services to ensure that they have a policy in place, as we
have identified a number of services who do not appear to have a policy..

As you have a policy in place covering all of your educators, you do not need to take any action.

Have a fantastic day.



Regards

Kerry

Kerry Van De Laarschot | Manager, Workers' Compensation Policy & Workplace Relations
Phone: 02 6205 0861 | Email: kerry.vandelaarsch act.gov.au

Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations Division

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate | ACT Government

Level 1 221 London Circuit, Canberra| GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | www.act.gov.au

raSch 2.2(a)ii)

Sch 2.2(a)(ii)
Sent: Wednesday, 15 August 2018 1:33 PM
To: VanDelaarschot, Kerry <Kerry.VanDelaarschot@act.gov.au>

Subject: Clarification on Workers Compensation Insurance

Dear Kerry,

VUl £.\AN\1) as received a letter on the 8th of August optlin in a
workers compensation policy to cover all providers within our service. has

a current cover under s of SYS] 22(8

)(ii)
We would like to have a clarification on whether all educators in our scheme need an
individual cover as they are sub-contractors with our service? Or does our service need to

have all the educators listed under our policy?

If you need any other information please contact me on SEeRACHL)

Thank You




AT |WORIETICT  GUIDANCE NOTE

lustice and Community Safety

WSACT GN 0048 v  lastupdate: August 2018 Number of pages: 2

The Workers Compensation Act 1951 (the Act) provides workers’ compensation entitlements for people who are
injured at work in the ACT.

~Are family day care and in home carers covered for Workers Compensation?

In 2006 the ACT Government introduced legislation to ensure that all approved family day care and approved
in-home carers in the ACT were covered for workers’ compensation purposes.

Section 16A of the Act was introduced to allow the Minister to declare all individuals registered by an approved
family day care or an approved in-home care service as workers for the purposes of the Act.

The Minister may make the declaration at the request of:
e anapproved family day care service;
e anapproved in-home care service; or
e on the Minister’s own initiative.

Since 2006, a range of practices have emerged and as a result there is some uncertainty about whether workers’
compensation cover should be provided to approved family day care and approved in-home care service
workers.

To clarify the issue and ensure workers’ compensation cover for these individuals, the Minister for Workplace
Safety and Industrial Relations has declared all individuals registered by an approved family day care or
approved in-home care service as workers for the purposes of the Act.

A copy of the declaration made by the Minister on 30 July 2018 can be found
here: http://www.legislation.act.gov.au/ni/2018-415/default.asp

A list of approved family day care and in-home care services in the ACT can be found at:

https://www.acecqa.gov.au/resources/national-
registers/services?s=8f%5B0%5D=service state%3AACT&f%5B1%5D=service search type%3AFamily%20Day%20Care

or

http://ifp.mychild.gov.au/mvc/Search/Advanced

If you have a workers compensation inquiry, contact WorkSafe ACT on 6207 3000.

WSACT GN 00 Last update: September 2018
Further Information | Phone: WorkSafe ACT on 02 6207 3000 | Email: worksafety@act.gov.au | Web: worksafe.act.gov.au

Note: This guidance material has been prepared using the best information available to WorkSafe ACT, Any information about legislative obligations or responsibilities included in
this material is only applicable to the circumstances described in the material, You shouid always check the legisiation referred to in this material and make your own judgement
about what action you may need to take to ensure you have complied with the law. Accordingly, WorkSafe ACT extends no warranties as to the suitability of the information for
your specific situation,

worksafe.act.gov.au













Genesis Family Day Care Services

[ABN: 96 252 093 420]

1 Dittmer Place, Fadden ACT 2904
Tel: 02 6291 7101

Email: info@genesisfdc.com.au
www,genesisfde.com.au

To:
Hon Mr Andrew Barr MLA, Chief Minister
Hon Ms Rachel Stephen-Smith MLA, Minister for Workplace Safety and Industrial Relations

Dear the Hon Mr Barr and the Hon Ms Stephen-Smith

RE: NOTIFIABLE INSTRUMENT NI2018-415

We are writing in response to the letter of 8 August 2018 from the Chief Minister's Department
regarding the Notifiable Instrument (N12018-415) made by the ACT Minister for Workplace °
Safety and Industrial Relations on 30 July 2018.

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
adverse cost impact on businesses and individuals.

Consideration of Relevant Information

() Unlike Community based family day care (FDC) services that have other operational
arms (e.g. child care centres, property hire) and capacity to cross subsidise FDC
operations, most privately owned FDC services are small businesses with a single line

of operation.




(i) _Except i
Sch 2.2(a)(ii) employ their FDC Educators.

(iif) mmm has been covered under a similar instrument since 2006. Given it
is 12 years since that instrument was made, a review of that arrangement would have
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
and that no other signatory state or_territory has similar workers compensation
provisions for self-employed family day care Educators in their jurisdictions.

Business Impact

(i) Most FDC services’ sole income is the admin fee charged to the FDC Educators,
which is around of the Educators’ income. If we are to assume that the current
4,65% workers compensation premium (including DI levy) is to be applied to the FDC

Educator's income, that would equate to 30~40% of the FDC Setvice’s income.

(i) In the case of Genesis Family Day Care Services, we have been operating for the past
2 ¥ years with an admin fee of er child and have never increased the
fees.

(i) We employ Coordinators & admin staff and also at no additional cost — run a music
group and a playgroup for 2 days each week during school term; organise excursions
(e.g. bus wash, parks); and conduct annual year end children’s concert for the benefit
of the families. Even though private, we run the Service as a social enterprise with

marginal profitability.

(iv) Currently, the Service’s admin fee is il of the average Educator fees and under
the Minister's 30 July declaration, the workers compensation premium of 4.65% would
account for 41% of the Service's current operating budget. Such a cost impost with
less than a month notice is unconscionable for an elected Government.

(v) Given itis impossible for any service to absorb such a cost at such short notice and at
once, the Service will have no choice but to pass on most or all of the cost to Educators.

(vi) If the full 4.65% workers compensation rate is to be passed on to FDC Educators, it

would be equivalent to an increase in income tax of 4.65% on ¢ross income (not
taxable income) without any commensurate increase in income.

(vi) When the major parties in the Federal Parliament agree on reducing costs to small
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
the usual meaning of “salaries, wages or allowances’, there must be published
notification from the Government as to what payments are to be considered
“salaries, wages or allowances’ for the purposes of determining the workers

compensation premium.

This is fundamental to give effect to the notifiable instrument to avoid any confusion or
differential treatment and for all FDC services to comply with the notifiable instrument.

| the other two community-based services fSch 2.2(a)(i)











